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INTRODUCTION

This document is a Consent Agreement (“Agreement”) regarding Barbara I. Ballatore’s license as a
registered professional nurse (“RN”} in the State of Maine. The parties to this Agreement are Barbara J.
Ballatore {“Ms. Ballatore”), the Maine State Board of Nursing (“the Board”), and the Office of the
Attorney General, State of Maine. The parties enter into this Agreement pursuant to 32 M.R.S. §2105-A
{1-A)(C) and 10 M.R.S. §8003(5)(B) in order to resolve Board Complaint 2012-171.

FACTS

1. Licensing History. Barbara ). Ballatore was licensed to practice in Maine as an RN on May 23,
1995. On April 13, 2012, Ms, Ballatore entered into a Consent Agreement for License Probation
with Conditions with the Maine State Board of Nursing for a period of two years following a
history of a substance abuse problem with alcohol. [Exhibit A]

2. At the time of the full execution of the April 2012 Agreement, Ms. Ballatore was employed as an
RN at the Hoffman Center, which provides skilled nursing at The Cedars {“Cedars”}, a retirement
community in Portland, Maine. Paragraph No. 8(f} of the April 2012 Agreement states:

Barbara J. Ballatore will notify any and all of her nursing employers of the terms of this
Agreement and provide them with a copy of it.

3, On June 6, 2012, Cedars discovered during a routine license renewal check that Ms. Ballatore
had been disciplined by the Board. On August 22, 2012, the Board received notification from
Cedars that Ms. Ballatore had been terminated on June 8, 2012 for failure to disclose the April
2012 Agreement imposing Board discipline and probation on her RN license.

4, On August 22, 2012, the Board initiated Board Complaint 2012-171, and after reviewing Ms.
Ballatore’s response received September 28, 2012, voted to invite her to attend an informal
conference on November 28, 2012, which was rescheduled twice at her request, the last time
being to January 7, 2013.

5. On January 7, 2013, Ms, Ballatore contacted Board staff by e-mail stating that she was resigning

as an RN. Subsequently, the Board received Ms. Ballatore’s hand written letter on January 8,

2013 in which she stated she was resigning and no longer pursuing a career in nursing.
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6. Barbara J. Ballatore has agreed to voluntarily surrender her RN license and enters into this
Agreement based upon the above-stated facts, thereby waiving her rights to an adjudicatory
hearing.
AGREEMENT
7. Barbara J. Ballatore understands and agrees that the Board has evidence from which it could

conclude there is a violation of Title 32 M.R.S. §2105-A (2){F), 10 M.R.S. §8003 (A-1}{4) and
Chapter 4, §1.A.6. and 4.3.F of the Rules and Regulations of the Maine State Board of Nursing
(“Board Rules”). Ms. Ballatore understands that her conduct in the above-stated facts
constitutes grounds for discipline. Specifically, the violations are:

a. Pursuant to 10 M.R.S. §8003 (A-1)(4) for failure to comply with the conditions of her -
April 13, 2012 Consent Agreement for Probation.

b. Pursuant to 32 M.R.S. §2105-A (2)(F) for engaging in unprofessional conduct that
violates a standard of professional behavior that has been established in the practice for
which Ms. Ballatore is licensed. See also: Board Rule Chapter 4. §1.A.6.

c. Pursuant to 32 M.R.S. §2105-A {2){H} for engaging in unprofessional conduct as
specified in Board Rule Chapter 4, §3(F) by failing to take appropriate action or follow
policies and procedures in the practice situation designed to safeguard the patient.

8. Barbara J. Ballatore understands and agrees that if this matter went to a hearing before the
Board, it is more likely than not the above-stated facts and underlying investigative information
would support the licensing violations in this Agreement.

9. Barbara |. Ballatore understands and agrees that as a result of this Agreement, her license is
surrendered and that she no longer has a license. Ms. Ballatore understands and agrees that,
upon receiving a request from her to reinstate her Maine RN license, the Board shait have the
sole discretion to grant or deny such a request or to grant her a license with probation and
conditions as it determines appropriate to protect the public.

10. The State of Maine is a “Party state” that has adopted the Nurse Licensure Compact (“the
Compact”), which is set out in Chapter 11 of the Board Rules. The State of Maine is Ms.
Ballatore’s “Home state” of licensure and primary state of residence, which means that she has
declared the State of Maine as her fixed permanent and principal home for legal purposes; her
domicile. Other Party states in the Compact are referred to as “Remote states,” which means
Party states other than the Home state that have adopted the Compact. Ms. Ballatore under-
stands this Agreement is subject to the Compact.

11, Ms. Ballatore shall not work or volunteer in any capacity for a health care provider as defined by
Title 24 M.R.S. §2502(2) or in any position holding herself out as a registered professional nurse
or with the designation “RN” whiie she does not hold a nursing license.

12, This Agreement is a public record within the meaning of 1 M.R.S, §402 and will be available for
inspection and copying by the public pursuant o 1 M.R.S. §408.
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i3. This Agreement constitutes a final adverse licensing action that is reportable to the National
Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) and the Healthcare Integrity and Protection Data Bank {HIPDB}
pursuant to Section 1128E of the Social Security Act and 45 C.F.R. Part 61.

14. Modification of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by all parties.

15, This Agreement is not subject to review or appeal by Ms. Ballatore, but may be enforced by an
action in the Superior Court.

16. Barbara J. Ballatore affirms that she executes this Agreement of her own free will.
17. This Agreement becomes effective upon the date of the last necessary signature below.

[, BARBARA J. BALLATORE, RN, HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING CONSENT
AGREEMENT. | UNDERSTAND THE EFFECT IT WILL HAVE ON MY NURSING LICENSE. | UNDERSTAND
THAT BY SIGNING IT, | WAIVE CERTAIN RIGHTS, | SIGN IT VOLUNTARILY, KNOWINGLY, INTELLIGENTLY
AND AGREE TO BE FOUND BY THIS AGREEMENT. | UNDERSTAND THAT THIS CONSENT AGREEMENT
CONTAINS THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND THERE IS NO OTHER AGREEMENT OF A YKIND.

Dated: _/ o2/ -/ i ﬁj«( %{/@ /{ﬁ

BARBARAJ B TORE RN

FOR THE MAINE STATE
BOARD OF NURSING

. Y -2 .
Dated: -)-Z Ao //3 7z “@WLVMJW
MYRA A, BROADWAY, JD, VIS, RN
Executive Director '

FOR THE ORFICE OF THE )
ATTORNEY NERM
Dated: : /\
‘h )
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IN RE: BARBARA J, BALLATORE, RN } CONSENT AGREEMENT
Old Orchard Beach, ME ) FOR
License No. RN385035 } PROBATION

INFRODUCTION

‘This document is a Consent Agreement (“Agreement”) regarding Barbara J. Ballatore’s license as a registered
professional nurse (“RN”) in the State of Maine. The Parties to this Agreement are Barbara J. Ballatore ("Licensee”
or “Ms. Ballatore”), Maine State Board of Nursing (“Board”) and the Office of the Attorney General, State of
Maine. The Parties met in an informal conference on November 29, 2011 and reached this Agreement on the basis
of. 1) a Board Complaint dated March 20, 2008 with an attached Provider Report from New England Rehabilitation
Hospital of Portland (“NERHP"} dated March 4, 2008 and received by the Board on March 7, 2008; 2) a Board
Complaint dated December 10, 2008 “For Failure to Respond” to the March 2008 Board Complaint from NERHP;
and 3) Ms. Ballatore’s tesponse to the Complaints dated January 12, 2009, A portion of the Complaint from NERHP
and Ms. Ballatore's response are attached hereto, incorporated herein and respectively marked as Exhibit A. The
Parties enter into this Agreement pursvant to 32 M.R.S. §§ 2105-A (1-A) (B), and 10 M.R.S. § 8003 (5) (B).

FACTS
1. Barbara J. Ballatore was licensed as an RN to praciice in Maine on May 23, 1995,
2. Barbara J. Ballatore was terminated from her position as a staff RN at NERHP on February 29, 2008

because of excessive medication errors, inadequate medication admivistration documentation and
absentceism. Exhibit A,

3. The above-referenced Complaints were first addressed at an informat conference with Ms. Ballatore and
the Board on October 6, 2010. The informal conference was recessed pending receipt oft ) an evaluation
and report from Ms. Ballatore’s primary care physician (“PCP"); 2) an ovaluation and report from a
licensed substance abuse counselor; and 3) a report from her current employer regarding her nursing
practice. The informal conference was rescheduled and completed on November 29, 2011 g

4, At the informal conference held on November 29, 2011, the Board reviewed: 1) the evaluation and report
from Ms. Ballatore’s PCP; 2) an evaluation and report from a licensed substance abuse counselor; and 3) a
Job Performance Evaluation from her current employer regarding her nursing practice. As of November 29,
2011, Ms. Ballatore represented to the Board that she has been sober since June 5, 2008,

5. Barbara J. Ballatore admits the allegations stated in the Board Complaint and Provider Report from
NERHP dated March 20, 2008. Ms. Ballatore also admils that she has a substance abuse problem with
alcohol.

6. Barbara J. Ballatore waives her right {o a heating before the Board and has agreed to resolve this matter by

entering into this Agreement.

! After receipt of Ms. Ballatore’s PCP's evaluation and report, hor current employer's report, reccived on January 6, 2081, and
Ms. Dallatore’s substance abuse evaluation, received by the Board on June 20, 2011, an informal confercico scheduled for
August 31, 2011 and October 6, 2011 were continued at Ms, Ballatore’s request and was rescheduled and compleied on
November 29, 2081,
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AGREEMENT
7. Barbara J. Ballatore understands and agrees that the Board has evidence from which it could conclude there

is a violation of Title 32 M.R.S. §§ 2105-A (2) (B), (2) (B) (1), @) (F), (2) (H) and Chapter 4.1.A.2,
4.1.A.5.a, 4.1.A.6,, 4.1.A.8,, Chapter 4,3.F of the Rules and Regulations of the Maine State Board of
Nussing (“Board Rules”). Ms. Ballatore understands and agrees that this conduct in the above-stated facts
constitutes grounds for discipline, Ms, Ballatore’s RN license is heroby placed on PROBATION for a term
of two (2) years ol nursing practice. Specifically, the violations are:

a 32 MRS, § 2105-A (2) (B). Habitual substance abuse that has resulted or was foreseeably likely to
result in Ms. Ballatore performing services in a manner that endangered the health and safety of
patients. See also: Board Rule Chapter 4, Section 1.A.2.

b, 32 MR.S. § 2105-A (2) (B) (1). Ms, Ballatore engaged in conduct that evidenced a lack of ability or
fitness to discharge the duty owed by the Heensee to a client or patient or the general public. Sce also:
Board Rule Chapter 4, Section 1.A.5.a.

c. 32 MR.S. § 2105-A (2) (F). Unprofessional Conduet. Ms. Ballatore engaged in unprofessional con-
duct which violated a standard of professional behavior that has been established in the practice for
which she is Heensed. See also: Board Rule Chapter 4, Section 1.A.6,

d. 32 MRS, § 2105-A (2) (H). Ms. Ballatore violated a Maine Revised Statute in Title 32, Chapter 31
and rules adopted by the Board. See also: Board Rule Chapter 4, Section 1.A.8. :

e. Doard Rule: Chapter 4, Section 3, Defines “Unprofessional Conduct” as mirsing behavior which fails
1o conform to legal standards of the nursing profession, which could reflect adversely on the health
and welfare of the public, which inciudes:

Chapter 4, Section 3(F). Ms. Ballatote failed to follow poticies and procedures designed to safeguard a
patient in that she failed to follow approprinte standards of nursing practice for medication administra-
tion and documentation.

Chapter 4, Section 3(K). Ms, Ballatore inaccurately recorded a patient or health care provider record.

8. Barbara J. Ballatore’s license as an RN is placed on probationary status with conditions. The period of pro-
bation will be for a period of two (2) years, effective oniy while she is employed in nursing practice. Her
probationary license will be subject to the following conditions:

a. Barbara J. Ballatore shall fully cooperate with the representatives of the Board in its monitoring and
Investigatlon of her compliance with probation. She shall inform the Board in writing within 15 days of any

address change,

b. Barbara J. Ballatore will notify the Board in writing within five business days of any changes in nursing
employment and/or an educational prograin in the field of nursing. Notice under this section shall include
the place and position of employment or tho nursing educational program. If during the period of probation,
Ms. Ballatore’s employment as a nurse or her educational program in the field of nursing terminates, she
shall notify the Board jn writing within five business days after she is tevminated or separated, regardless of
cause, wiih a full explanation of the circumstances.

¢. Barbara J. Ballatore will abstain completely from the use of alcohol or drugs, with the exception of sub-
stances used in accordance with a valid preséription from treatment providers who are aware of Ms.
Batlatore's substance abuse history.

d. Barbara J. Ballatore will continue in her treatment program fo such an extent and for as long as her treat-
ment providers recommend. She will arrange for and ensure the submission of quarterly reports to the
Roard by her treatment providers and such repotts shall continue until her probation is terminated. 1f Ms,
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10,

12,

i3,

4.

Ballatore’s treatment is terminated during her probation, she shall notify the Board and provide written
documentation.

¢. Barbara J. Ballatore’s nursing employment is restricted during the perfod of probation te structured
seftings with on-site supervision by another registered professional nuise. Structured seitings shall not in-
clude assignments from temporary employment agencies, home health, school nursing, work as a travel
nutse or within the correctional system.

f. Barbara J. Ballatore will notify any and all of her nursing employers of the terms of this Agreement and
provide them with a copy of it

g. Barbara J. Ballatore will arrange for and ensure the submission te the Board of quarterly reports from her
nursing employer regarding her general nursing practice including adherence fo policies and procedures
and documentation of medication administration.

Barbara J. Ballatore agrees and understands that her Hcense will remain on probationary status and subject
to the terms of this Agreement beyond the above-referenced two-year probationary period until and unless
the Board, at her written request, votes to terminate her probation, When considering whether to terminate
the probation, the Beard will consider the extent to which Ms, Ballators has complied with the provisions
of this Agreement.

Barbara 1. Ballatore agrees and understands that the Board and the Office of tho Attorney General shall
have access to any and all medical records and all otherwise confidential or medically priviteged informa-
tion pertaining to her medical treatment which the Board deems necessary to evaluate her complhance with
this Agreement, Ms, Ballatore shall provide such Information, authorize the release of such records and
information, and authorize any such discussions and communications with any and all persons involved in
her care, counseling and employment as may be requested by the Beard for the purpose of evaluating her
compliance with this Agreement,

If Ms. Ballatove violates any other condition of her probation, the Board will give written notice to the
Liconses regarding her failure to comply. She has 30 days from receipt of this notification to respond to the
Board, in writing, regarding the alleged violation. 'The Board will review the Liconsee’s response to delor-
mine what action, if any, it determines to take, If the Licensee fails to timely respond to the Board’s notifi-
cation regarding her failure to comply, her license will be immediately suspended pending a hearing at the
next regularly scheduled Board meeting, If after notice and a hearing, the Board finds that the Licensee has
failed to meet the conditions of probation, the Board may take any disciplinary action which it deoms
appropriate and impose any of the sanctions including, but not limited to, that found in Title 10 MRS, §
8003 and Title 32 M.R.8. § 2105-A,

The State of Maine is a “Party state” that has adopted the Nurse Licensure Compact (“Compact”), which is
set out in Chapter 11 of the Board Rules, The State of Maine Is Ms, Ballatore’s “Home state” of licensure
and primary state of residence, which means that she has declared the State of Maine as her fixed perma-
nent and principle home for legal purposes; her domicile. Other Party states in the Compact are referred to
as “Remote states,” which means Party states other than the Home state that have adopted the Compact.
Ms, Ballatore understands and agrees that this Agreement Is applicable to her multi-state licensure
privilego, if any, to practice nursing in Compact states.

IT IS FURTHER AGREED that while Ms. Ballatore’s license is subject to this Agreement, she may not
work outside the State of Maine pursuant to a mulli-state privilege without the written permission of the
Maine Siate Board of Nursing and the Board of Nursing in the Party state(s) in which she wishes to work.

Barbara J. Ballatore understands that she does nof have to execute this Agreement and has the right to
consult with an atterney before entering into the Agreement,

Modification of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by all the Patties.
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15, This Agreement is a public record within the meaning of 1 MRS, § 402 and will be available for
Inspection and copying by the public pursuant to 1 MLR.S, § 408,

16. This Agreeinent is not subject to review or appeal by Ms. Ballatore, but may be enforced by an action in

the Superior Court,

17. This Agreement becomes effective upon the date of the last necessary signature below.,

I, BARBARA J. BALLATORE, RN, HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING CONSENT
AGREEMENT. 1 UNDERSTAND THE EFFECT IT WILL HAYE ON MY REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL

NURSE LICENSE,

1 UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING IT, I WAIVE CERTAIN RIGHTS, I SIGN IT

VOLUNTARILY, KNOWINGLY, AND INTELLIGENTLY AND AGREE TO BT BOUND BY THIS AGREE-
MENT. I UNDERSTAND THAT THIS CONSENT AGREEMENT CONTAINS THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT
AND THERE IS NO OTHER AGREEMENT OF ANY KIND.

DATED: /2

DATED: ‘ZZ/ZZEL

DATED:

FOR THE MAINE STATE
BOARD OF NURSING

MYRA/A, BROADWAY, JDAMS, RN

i ‘FICE
OF THE ORNHRY GENERAL
/
) A

JOHN I RIGHARDS ' AU
ssistant Attdrney General




